Corporate Policy Development and
Scrutiny Panel
Date: Monday, 11th January, 2021
Time: 4.00 pm
Venue: Via zoom
Councillors: Paul Myers, Winston Duguid, Mark Elliott, Andrew Furse,
Hal MacFie, Alastair Singleton, Shaun Hughes, Karen Warrington and
Lucy Hodge
Panel members please note that there will be a pre-meeting at 3.30pm

Michaela Gay
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG
Telephone: michaela_gay@bathnes.gov.uk, 01225 394411
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk

NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:
Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by
contacting as above.
3. Recording at Meetings:The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.
Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please
make yourself known to the camera operators.
To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or guardians
before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to the camera
operator.
The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be available
for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.
4. Public Speaking at Meetings
The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings.
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group.
Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting. This
means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be received in Democratic
Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday.
Further details of the scheme can be found at:
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
6. Supplementary information for meetings
Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel - Monday, 11th January, 2021
at 4.00 pm via zoom
AGENDA
1.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to
indicate:
(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.
(b) The nature of their interest.
(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of
Interests)
Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

4.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN

5.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS,
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF
THIS MEETING
At the time of publication no notifications had been received.

6.

MINUTES (Pages 5 - 10)

7.

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE
The Cabinet Member will update the Panel on any relevant issues. Panel members
may ask questions on the update provided.

8.

PEOPLE STRATEGY (Pages 11 - 28)

9.

OUTSOURCING OUR SERVICES (Pages 29 - 32)

10.

COUNCIL COMPANY ACCOUNTS (Pages 33 - 98)

11.

PANEL WORKPLAN (Pages 99 - 102)
This report presents the latest workplan for the Panel. Any suggestions for further

items or amendments to the current programme will be logged and scheduled in
consultation with the Panel’s Chair and supporting officers.
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Michaela Gay who can be contacted on
michaela_gay@bathnes.gov.uk, 01225 394411.

Agenda Item 6
BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET
MINUTES OF CORPORATE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL
MEETING
Monday, 23rd November, 2020
Present:- Councillors Paul Myers, Winston Duguid, Mark Elliott, Andrew Furse,
Alastair Singleton, Shaun Hughes, Karen Warrington and Lucy Hodge
Apologies for absence: Councillors: Hal MacFie
33

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting.

34

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
There were none.

35

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were none.

36

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN
There was none.

37

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS,
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF
THIS MEETING
David Redgewell, South West Transport Network and Railfuture Severnside, made a
statement to the Panel regarding transport matters, especially with regard to Covid
issues. He stated the importance of Covid marshalls in towns and on transport
services to encourage social distancing.

38

MINUTES
The Panel confirmed the minutes of the meeting held on 28th September 2020 as a
true record.

39

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE
Councillor Richard Samuel, Cabinet Member for Resources, updated the Panel on
the following:
•
•

Regarding the budget, we are currently going through an exercise to review
expenditure plans for each portfolio.
Wednesday 25th November – the Chancellor will announce the spending
review.
1

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 23rd November, 2020

Page 5

•
•
•

40

We are currently unsure if a public sector pay freeze will apply to Local
Government.
3 public webinars on the budget are being planned for 15 th, 16th and 22nd
December. Panel members are welcome to attend. The Panel may also wish
to request an advanced sight of the information.
Regarding Property, there will be a report on the review of Property Services
to Cabinet in December. In response to a query from Councillor Duguid, the
Cabinet Member explained that this would be an internal report. There has
also been an external company appointed to review how the Council is
managing its Commercial Estate – this will report in the new year.

COMMERCIAL ESTATE
Andrea Frow, Landlord and Tenant Team Manager and Cleo Newcombe-Jones,
Renewal Programme Lead (High Streets Reopening & Renewal Programme), gave
a presentation to the Panel which covered the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Introduction – Commercial Estate Review
The Council’s Property Portfolio
The Commercial Estate – Origins
The Commercial Estate – Holdings
Commercial Estate Income – by Unit Type
Commercial Estate – Forecast
Commercial Estate – Voids
Commercial Estate – Arrears
Current Challenges and Debates
Support and Actions – Estates Section
Budgetary Implications – Strategies
On-going work and current initiatives
Reopening and Renewing High Streets Safely
Milsom Street – Renewal Programme
Immediate and Short-Term Interventions Proposal
Bath City Centre Vacant Unit Action Project

Panel members asked the following questions and raised the following points:
(Officer responses are shown in italics)
Councillor Hughes stated that the retail sector had been on the decline for years, so
he was surprised that there had been a flurry of activity in response to Covid when
this was an ongoing issue. The officer explained that work had been ongoing for a
number of years and there was an ‘Estates Strategy’.
Councillor Duguid asked if this authority is on the front foot regarding turnover rents
which are used elsewhere. The officer responded that each case is considered on its
own merits, but generally turnover rents are avoided as they are difficult and
complicated to administer.
Councillor Furse raised the issue of street traders such as burger vans working
outside of high-end businesses. He asked that consideration be given to specific

2
Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 23rd November, 2020

Page 6

areas or times for street vendors. Councillor Hodge agreed that street vendors can
have a negative impact and asked if there is a plan to manage this.
Councillor Furse stated that there are many residents who live in the city centre and
this must be kept in mind in decision making.
Councillor Elliot raised the following points. Officer responses are shown in italics:
•
•

What is being learnt from other cities? The officer agreed that this was useful
and confirmed that she had been in touch with York and other similar cities.
How are pop ups marketed to local firms? The officer explained that we are
being more proactive and flexible, for example a consortium of 8 businesses
have taken up a unit where they could not have done so on their own. It is
hoped that this can continue.

Councillor Warrington asked what percentage of the commercial estate is held in
North East Somerset (outside of Bath). Councillor Furse asked what the figure
was for outside of the authority. The officer responded that she would find out
and circulate the figures to the Panel.
The Panel RESOLVED to set up a Task and Finish group to consider the internal
report on Property (which reports by the end of this year) and the external report
on management of the Commercial Estate (due to report in the new year) and
bring a summary back to the Panel (possibly March 2021 meeting).
41

BUDGET SETTING 2021/22
Andy Rothery, Director of Finance (S151 Officer), introduced the report and gave a
presentation to the Panel which covered the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Financial Outlook 5 year view
Budget Structure by Portfolio
Next Steps
Budget Engagement
Budget Engagement themes
High level timetable

Panel members asked the following questions and raised the following points:
Councillor Myers asked for information on staffing levels – a base level and levels
looking forward for broad portfolio areas. The officer stated that he would forward
information on staffing budgets to the Panel.
The Panel RESOLVED to note the Medium Term Financial Strategy; the 2021/22
Budget presentation and budget engagement themes.
42

TASK AND FINISH GROUP - COMMERCIAL MARKETS

3
Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 23rd November, 2020

Page 7

The Panel discussed the way ahead regarding the key findings of the Task and
Finish Group on Commercial Markets and RESOLVED that the following
recommendations be forwarded to the relevant Cabinet Members:
1. Heritage and Tourism – that detailed research in this area be discussed with
the relevant Cabinet Member.
2. Parking –
• that the pressing concern of making Park and Ride sites fit for purpose (in
terms of opening hours and lighting) be addressed.
• That the use of tariffs to change travel behaviour be explored.
• That parking enforcement be strengthened;
• That on street parking be reduced for visitors (and they be encouraged to use
the Park and Ride or car parks)
3. Commercial Estate –
• That more research be done to understand the cultural and behavioural shift
in retail.
• That we understand the different sectors of the city and encourage unique
characteristic activity for these areas.
• That these market sectors be linked together in the future.
• That re purposing and diversification in the high street be explored.
• That a strategy be put in place to improve the night-time economy (so that it
caters for a wider group).

43

PANEL WORKPLAN
It was noted that an item on ‘People Strategy’ was likely to be brought to the next
meeting.
It was noted that the January/February 2021 meeting was likely to be mainly
concerned with the budget report and discussion.
Councillor Myers thanked the Panel for their work on the Council Tax Contribution
Fund at the last meeting.
Councillor Myers asked Panel members for forward any suggestions for future items
to the Democratic Services Officer and these will be discussed at the agenda setting
meetings with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Panel.
The Panel noted their future workplan.

The meeting ended at 5.46 pm
Chair(person)
4
Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 23rd November, 2020

Page 8

Date Confirmed and Signed
Prepared by Democratic Services

5
Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 23rd November, 2020

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Agenda Item 8

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING

Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel

MEETING

11 January 2021

TITLE:

People Strategy 2020-2024 Update

WARD:

All
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
People Strategy 2020-2024
Preparing for the Future update report

1

THE ISSUE

1.1 This covering report is to provide an update to the Corporate Policy
Development & Scrutiny Panel on progress made on the Council’s People
Strategy 2020-2024.
2

RECOMMENDATION

Panel is asked to;
2.1 Note the enclosed documents as background information for the presentation to
be made to the panel on 11 January 2021.
3

THE REPORT

3.1 Corporate PDS considered and discussed the People Strategy at its meeting on
24 September 2019. The Strategy was signed off by the Senior Leadership
Team in March 2020.
3.2 Covid-19 has significantly impacted upon every aspect of the work of the
Council; our delivery of critical frontline services, our community response, the
health and wellbeing of our staff and the way many of our office-based staff
work, connect and interact with each other and with clients.
Page 11
Printed on recycled paper

3.3 It is within this context that we have delivered some key actions within the first
year of People Strategy 2020-2024 under the five key themes; attraction,
retention and workforce planning, employee engagement and performance,
talent and development, preparing for the future and health, safety and
wellbeing. These will be covered in detail in the presentation.
3.4 The Preparing for the Future Programme is one theme within the People
Strategy that has been accelerated as a result of Covid-19. A separate briefing
note is included to cover the details of the programme.
4

STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 The People Strategy helps to ensure that the Council delivers against its
statutory obligations in all areas.
5

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

5.1 The majority of the People Strategy work is being developed within the existing
HR&OD resources. The work to review the Council’s pay and grading structure
has been delayed for one year as part of the budget planning process.
5.2 The Preparing for the Future Programme is managed and funded separately as
the Council’s key transformation programme.
6

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 There are a number of continuing risks that need to be managed. Staff capacity
remains a significant risk that Covid-19 has exacerbated. Staff resilience, health
and wellbeing is a further significant risk that Covid-19 and pro-longed
lockdown/isolation is bringing to the fore. These are both recorded and
monitored on the Council’s Corporate Risk Register and will be discussed further
as part of the presentation.
7

EQUALITIES

7.1 There are key pieces of work as part of the People Strategy to promote equality,
diversity and inclusion within the Council. This includes refreshing our employee
equality groups, establishing the Council’s Equality and Diversity Steering Group
and rolling out new online Equality, Diversity and Inclusion training for staff and
members.
7.2 A full Equality Impact Assessment of the Preparing for the Future Programme
can be found here.
8

CLIMATE CHANGE

8.1 There are key pieces of work as part of the People Strategy which contribute to
addressing the climate emergency. This includes work to review the Corporate
Travel Policy, continuing to embed and expand the Pool Car Scheme and staff
benefits that promoting walking and cycling to work.
8.2 The Preparing for the Future Programme is supporting this further with changes
to our offices and promoting the principle that “work is what you do, not a place
where you go”, using technology to enable many office-based staff to work from
anywhere without the need to travel.
Page 12
Printed on recycled paper

9

CONSULTATION

9.1 The three corporate trade unions, UNISON, UNITE and the GMB are regularly
consulted on a monthly basis on all aspects of the People Strategy work and the
Preparing for the Future Programme. There is also regular staff engagement on
much of the work of the HR, OD and Health, Safety and Wellbeing service (eg:
through the staff survey, training and development, health and digital champions
etc)

Contact person

Cherry Bennett, Director of HR & OD, Tel: 01225 477203

Background
papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14

PEOPLE STRATEGY 2020 – 2024
Be our BEST to improve people’s lives
Page 15

Corporate Strategy

The Council’s Corporate Strategy sets out a clear framework for what we will focus on and how we will work over the next four years:
ONE:

We have one overriding purpose – to improve people’s lives. This might sound simple, but it brings together everything we do, from cleaning
the streets to caring for our older people. It is the foundation for our strategy, and we will ensure that it drives our commitments, spending
and service delivery.

TWO:

We have two core policies – tackling the climate and nature emergency and giving people a bigger say. These will shape everything we do.

THREE:

To translate our purpose into commitments, we have identified three principles. We want to prepare for the future, deliver for local residents
and focus on prevention.

Page 16
This People Strategy recognises the critical role that employees and our community partners have in every aspect of what the Council delivers. The Strategy
supports the Council’s framework as set out in the Corporate Strategy and outlines a plan of action for the next four years which will drive the development
and effective management of our workforce delivering a core set of services.

out

Employer brand – Be Our BEST

Considerable change has already taken place across the Council and we are building on our successes and giving everyone who works for the Council the
opportunity to be their best in line with the organisation’s needs.
We have established a new employer brand built around our BEST values to create an identity so that we improve the way that we attract and retain our
staff, create a strong culture and promote the behaviours that will help us deliver our Corporate Strategy

Page 17

Bold
Our staff are bold, stand up for our principles, are accountable and take action whilst being fully aware of its likely consequences. Being bold means
staff do not hesitate and are not fearful in the face of adversity but instead take courageous action.

Empowered
Our staff are empowered, have the knowledge, confidence, means, or ability to do things or make decisions for themselves and others. Being
empowered means staff are trusted to deliver services, are outcomes driven and have the authority to be enablers.

Supportive
Our staff are supportive, give help and encouragement to our residents and their colleagues. Being supportive means staff are questioning and
curious whilst being caring, friendly, kind and willing to help.

Transparent
Our staff are transparent, honest and open and collaborate with partners and each other to achieve the best outcomes. Being transparent means
staff act with integrity, do not hide or conceal anything and are clear and easy to understand.

People Strategy priorities

The People Strategy identifies five priority areas for 2020-2024. For each priority there is an overview of what our focus is and what we plan to do to
achieve that priority.
A more detailed annual action plan will be developed and monitored to deliver this strategy and set out detailed deliverables, timescales, ownership and
accountability.

Attraction, retention and workforce planning
Page 18

Employee engagement and performance
Talent and development
Preparing for the Future
Health, Safety and Wellbeing

Attraction, retention and workforce planning
Why is this a priority?
We know that we have no choice but to change the way we do things as an
organisation in order to keep pace with increased demand, rising costs and
reduced funding.
To do this, it is essential that our staff have the right skills to deliver
improved ways of working and that we have a workforce that is fit for
purpose – this includes developing skills for the 21 st Century Public
Servant, commercial awareness, contract management and working
digitally. We also need a clear process for annual workforce planning which
is aligned to our corporate priorities and driven by our business needs, not
by our processes.

Page 19

We are looking to attract and retain staff in an increasingly competitive
employment market. We therefore need a clear employer brand and
approach for attracting the right people with the diversity of skills the
organisation and our community needs. Now more than ever, we need a
strategy to ensure that the staff we have are motivated, productive and
engaged in meaningful work. We know that the opportunity for good
learning and development is a strong motivating and retaining factor for
employees at B&NES and we want to build on this, which could include
retraining existing staff into growth areas.
What is our focus – what are we planning to do?
• Carry out modernisation of our recruitment processes, including the
introduction of a new careers website, use of social media, and flexible
ways of applying for jobs including recruitment processes tailored to
particular target groups.
• Carry out a large-scale modernisation of our pay and grading structure
and mechanisms, including looking at the feasibility of performance
related progression and reviewing the use of market supplements.
• Develop a clear and attractive employer brand using real life stories to
recruit the best staff and highlight the value of working in local
government in Bath, Keynsham, and Midsomer Norton: (this will include
apprenticeships and hard to fill roles such as social workers, drivers,
civil enforcement officers, engineers, accountants, pensions roles, and
education staff).

•
•

Focus on understanding the local workforce and job market and work in
partnership with local schools, colleges, universities and the third sector
to promote opportunities for local employment at B&NES.
Develop a clear total reward and recognition offer to celebrate our
successes and retain talent (including learning and development,
community volunteering opportunities, staff benefits, pensions package,
and saying thank you for ‘going the extra mile’) in line with our values.

How will we measure success?
• Some staff turnover in the right roles and for the right reasons (e.g.
promotion, career development)
• Posts are successfully recruited to at the first attempt from a local
workforce where appropriate
• Staff recommend B&NES as a good place to work (confirmed through
the staff surveys)
• Our workforce is more representative of the local demographics
• Targeted retention/workforce planning in critical service areas

Employee engagement and performance
action plans
Why is this a priority?
To achieve the right outcomes for our community, we want to develop the
culture, leadership and environment for staff to work to their full potential
and to be their best.
We value all our employees and we want to build and encourage an
inclusive culture where everyone feels able to participate and achieve their
best. We also want to promote and enhance diversity across the
organisation.
We want to continue to develop opportunities for meaningful two-way
communication – regularly listening to what staff have to say and
encouraging staff to tell their stories.

Page 20

What is our focus – what are we planning to do?
• Establish a Staff Engagement Group and refresh the Employee
Equality Groups so that the employee voice is heard
• Build on our strong Trade Union relationships and maintain
transparency, openness and constructive challenge on all aspects of
work
• Introduce a Strategic Leader Development Programme.
• Review and make recommendations to continually develop effective
working relationships with SLT and political leadership
• Create a culture where coaching is our preferred leadership and
management style and regular, good quality performance development
conversations (PDCs) take place with strong alignment to corporate
performance management methods promoting clear lines of
accountability
• Baseline our staff engagement data with a staff survey in Autumn 2019
followed by smaller regular pulse surveys on key topics after this – and
a commitment to being open and transparent with the findings and
action plans
• Resolve conflict at work at the earliest stage and lowest level possible
using trained mediators from HR & OD, the Trade Unions and
managers

•
•
•
•

Develop a refreshed set of values that staff can identify with and
become a common language. Embed into our processes and display in
our offices and depots as well as digitally.
Refresh the way in which we communicate with staff and managers.
Create videos of our staff telling us what it is like working for B&NES
and promote on social media
Develop tools and skills for managers to ensure they have a key role in
team communications

How will we measure success?
• Employee engagement score in staff survey is higher than 60%, using
“B&NES keeps me informed” and “I have the opportunity to influence
decisions that affect me” questions in the staff survey
• We are able to measure and articulate the impact of our coaching and
evolve our strategy accordingly
• 100% off staff have had a PDC in the last year and quality is monitored.
• 100% of staff have completed the core training required for their role
• Mediation has been used to resolve more than 50% of workplace
conflict (self-reported through staff survey) and the number of grievance
cases has decreased (through case management data)
• Membership of Employee Equality Groups has increased
proportionately and increased two-way dialogue between the groups
and senior management
• Trade Union recognition agreement in place with regular joint meetings

Talent and development
Why is this a priority?
In order for B&NES to be a success, we need to develop the right
leadership and management skills, knowledge and behaviours at all levels,
not just for the B&NES employees, but for our partners and the community
too.
This means developing the considerable and varied talent we have and
retaining key staff who are our leaders for the future.
We also know that, as the role of local government changes, we need to be
adaptable and flexible as a workforce. This means supporting our staff and
wider community to be their best and have the right skills and knowledge to
respond to this.

Page 21

What is our focus – what are we planning to do?
• Enhance and embed the @ My Best programme to create defined
career pathways for all from apprenticeships through to senior
leadership
• Develop regular tailored development opportunities for particular
groups e.g. Development Plus for Women and Stepping Up for BME
and disabled staff
• Continue to grow the number of apprenticeships (both new and
upskilling) we have and the routes which people can access them
• Define and embed leadership behaviours through 360° feedback,
targeted development, coaching and action learning sets
• As part of workforce planning, develop a succession plan for the
organisation as a whole, identifying talent and creating opportunities
internally where possible through secondments and project work
• Put in place structured work experience programme across the council,
that will provide access for local students from local schools and
colleges as well as those returning to work after a break
• Support the Project Search programme which helps young adults with
learning disabilities to gain the skills they need for employment
• Develop MBA programme to support future leaders, delivered via the
apprenticeship programme

•

Support Member development through induction, learning and regular
feedback

•

Embed coaching skills via a well-established coaching pool and
develop coaching as our preferred leadership style
Implement the upgrade of learning zone and develop performance
management reporting

•

How will we measure success?
• Through the measurement and impact of return on investment
• Attendance on Stepping Up and other programmes aimed at enhancing
opportunities for women and those with diverse backgrounds
• Succession plan in place that is being enacted
• Attendance on work experience programmes meets our targets, is
increased gradually year on year and outcomes are recorded.
• We have identified our skills gaps and have made significant progress
towards closing them
• Evaluation of learning outcomes that are reviewed for continuous
improvement
• 100% utilisation of our apprenticeship levy funds deployed strategically
including to partner organisations
• Evaluation of the impact of the work experience programme for both
participants and staff
• Improvement in the proportion of staff who have received appropriate
training and development (staff survey)

Preparing for the Future
Why is this a priority?
We know that we need to modernise and improve how we work. Our
Preparing for the Future Programme will enable us to effectively deliver our
core services, meet the significant savings and efficiencies we need to
make and make the Council more agile. As part of this, our staff should be
able to access systems and information digitally and have the necessary
skills and technology to do this.
We also need to ensure that staff have the skills and capability to manage
our commercial activities effectively; to balance income generation with
service provision, to commission and manage contracts effectively and
ensure value for money.

Page 22

What is our focus – what are we planning to do?
• Contribute to delivering the collaborative Preparing for the Future
Programme; including digital and blending working programmes,
corporate travel and future workspaces
• Engage with services to implement blended working practices ensuring
that managers take ownership
• Provide the right technology and equipment for all staff to work
effectively and efficiently, whatever their job role
• Develop and enhance digital skills to drive efficiency, engagement and
productivity and introduce digital champions to upskill staff
• Recognise the different approaches required to deliver services in new
and different models through:
o Working with our communities (e.g. community libraries,
volunteering)
o Integration (CCG)
o Mutual arrangements (e.g. Youth Connect)
o Commercial services (e.g. One West, Heritage, Parking)
o Partnership arrangements (e.g. WECA, Adoption West)
• Embed a business partnering approach across professional services
teams
• Provide targeted coaching programmes to support implementation of
this work using our internal coaching pool
• Lead the skills workstream of the new 5 year IT Strategy

Health and Wellbeing

•

How will we measure success?
• The Preparing for the Future programme has delivered its objectives
• All staff will be digitally enabled with access to information and
resources via the right technology for their role
• Staff have the commercial awareness and skills to operate effectively
• There will be a business partnering model in place across HR, Finance,
IT, Marketing, and Business Support
• Centralisation of services takes place delivering efficiencies
• Staff embrace blended working practices and maximise effectiveness of
collaborative working

Health, Safety and Wellbeing
Why is this a priority?
In this complex environment, we must ensure legal compliance in terms of
Health and Safety at all times, ensuring that our estate is a safe place to
work, but also to go beyond this to enable staff to be healthy and engaged
in their work. We care about our staff and know that they will perform if
they are safe and happy at work, and have a healthy, balanced approach
to all aspects of their lives.
We continue to provide a high-quality traded Health, Safety & Wellbeing
service to schools and multi-academy trusts which provides an income
stream to the service and supports the wider work we do.

Page 23

What is our focus – what are we planning to do?
• Develop a detailed employee wellbeing strategy and action plan
• A comprehensive programme of wellbeing activities which focus on
mental wellbeing, menopause, musculoskeletal health and healthy
lifestyles
• Development of a Corporate Health Champions project
• A full audit and update of all risk assessments across all areas of the
Council’s business
• Ensuring accountability and responsibility for all health, safety and
wellbeing matters is at the right level in the organisation identifying
roles and responsibilities for supervisors, team leaders, managers and
leaders
• Review of key performance indicators for Health, Safety & Wellbeing
throughout the Council and regular monitoring and measuring to ensure
compliance
• Be clear on our governance arrangements and ensure accountability is
at the right levels, with an annual report to the Council each year.
• Develop comprehensive 2 or 3 year SLAs with schools to provide a
Health, Safety and Wellbeing Service that is robust and planned in the
medium-term.
• Offer a series of learning opportunities on stress and resilience, mental
health awareness and mindfulness
• Measure progress against the Workplace Wellbeing Index

How will we measure success?
• All staff are clear about their individual role and responsibility for
health, safety and wellbeing whatever their level in the organisation
and have received training and updates as appropriate
• The key performance indicators will be reliable and used to inform
decision making
• We will score well and make progress against the Workplace
Wellbeing Index
• All types of sickness absence levels are monitored and reduced,
with additional focus on long-term absences relating to mental
health
• High satisfaction levels amongst all wellbeing activities and training
• Corporate Health Champions across all service areas
• Stress Risk Assessments completed in all service areas
• Positive increases in staff wellbeing based on staff survey and PDC
results
• Increase in access to Employee Assistance Programme through
app downloads and portal visits
• SLAs are signed and renewed with schools
• Appropriate risk assessments are in place across the organisation
and reviewed on a regular basis

Be our BEST
to
improve people’s lives

Page 24

Preparing for the Future Programme
The Preparing for the Future Programme is delivering changes to how we work which will
streamline our use of office buildings and enable a more flexible workforce that reflects the
changes in how we now work and how we will deliver services in the future. The aim is to
equip all staff to have a good day’s work by providing them with the right technology, being
flexible in our approach to promote wellbeing and ensuring an effective work/life balance.
The overarching principle will be work is what you do not a place you go.
The streamlining of our office buildings and reducing the need to travel by encouraging
blended working is driven by our corporate strategy as it both supports our principle of
preparing for the future and contributes to the core policy of addressing the climate
emergency.
Blended working combines on-site and off-site working, enabled by the utilisation of
information and communication technologies that provide staff with real-time access to jobrelevant information and co-workers. It refers to smooth and seamless time-independent
working (flexibility in when and how long workers engage in work-related tasks) and locationindependent working (flexibility in where work gets done).
Objectives
The aim of the programme is to change the way we work so the Council is fit for the
future and includes the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Vacate St Martin’s Hospital and change the work base for the teams based there
to Keynsham Civic Centre and/or the Hollies
Reduce the number of office buildings we use in Bath
Change the work base for the majority of teams based at the Guildhall and Lewis
House to Keynsham Civic Centre
Generate income by commercial letting of floors 1-4 of Lewis House
Temporarily re-design parts of the office space in Keynsham Civic Centre and the
Guildhall to make the buildings Covid secure
Re-design office space for the future in Keynsham Civic Centre to increase
capacity and change how we work
Review and update the IT and digital strategy and enable responsive, safe and
secure remote working and agility across the Council

Benefits
The planned benefits of the programme are as follows:
•
•
•
•

Reduced operating costs from a reduction of office buildings / rationalisation of
space
Revenue generation from the commercial letting of Lewis House
Increased efficiency of staff with the right IT equipment / new ways of working
An IT and digital strategy in place fit for the future to enable us to deliver services
more efficiently
1

Page 25

•
•
•
•

Break-down of silo working by changing the way our office buildings are used and
increased collaboration across and between teams
Increased staff morale and well-being leading to improved productivity
Delivery of savings plans in HR&OD (from reduction in travel) and Estates
Enhancing and improving utilisation of the Keynsham Civic Centre office building

Progress
The timescales for the programme were planned to be June 2020 – March 2021, but this is
likely to be impacted by the decisions made by the Government on lockdown measures and
social distancing requirements in our office buildings.
In the first 6 months of the programme of work the following has been delivered:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Vacation and clear out of equipment and paperwork from St Martins Hospital.
Reduction in leasehold costs of £50k per annum
Vacation and clear out of equipment and paperwork from Lewis House floors 1 –
4
Commercial letting of floors 1 & 2 of Lewis House to Bath University (from Sept
2020) Discussions being held with other potential tenants for floors 3 & 4
Vacation and clear out of equipment and paperwork from the Guildhall floor 1
North
Covid safe preparation of Keynsham Civic Centre and the Guildhall for some staff
to return from September onwards
Clear out of equipment and paperwork by some teams in Keynsham Civic
Centre
Recruitment of programme manager for the Keynsham re-fit in 2021
Purchase of 325 laptops for phase one IT rollout
Review of IT and digital strategy underway and consultancy support engaged
Communication, change management and engagement plan in place with staff

Next stage
The focus for the next stage of the programme will be on the re-design of Keynsham Civic
Centre to increase capacity, maximise utilisation of the building and enable staff to work
differently. In order to give staff access to the office space the principle will be that the space
will be mainly for team collaboration and meetings and so if you have a discrete piece of
work to do which does not involve others you do that at home or elsewhere.
Whilst the designs are still in the development stage the following changes are proposed:
•
•
•
•

A partnership working space which will enable our key partners to book hot desks
on the understanding there will be a reciprocal arrangement in their office
buildings
Removal of desks to create team collaboration spaces to include pods with
screens and meeting areas
Touch down areas with high bars and stools for temporary working in between
meetings
A flexible learning and development / training suite.
2

Page 26

•
•
•
•
•

Different zones for different types of work – eg a technology zone housing
specialist equipment such as plotters and CAD machines
Removal of some meeting rooms to create more flexible space
Addition of corporate strategy and values branding along with increased use of
colour
Resolution of the current equalities issues eg re-naming and better identification
of floors and wings
Addition of small booths for confidential discussions

The aim is to create a workspace that staff want to go to on the occasions they are able to
book space. The rest of the time staff will work flexibly, either from home or using community
or partnership space.
The phase two IT roll-out will see a further ~750 laptops provided to staff during 2021/22.
This will also enable the launch of Microsoft Teams to all staff.

Amanda George, Interim Director of Business Recovery
29 December 2020

3

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28

Agenda Item 9

Bath & North East Somerset Council
MEETING

Corporate Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel
EXECUTIVE FORWARD
PLAN REFERENCE:

MEETING

11 January 20

TITLE:

Outsourcing and approaches to service delivery

WARD:

All

E N/A

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM
List of attachments to this report: N/A

1

THE ISSUE

1.1 The Panel has asked for a briefing on the different approaches to service
delivery.
1.2 The Panel work plan includes scrutiny of existing outsourced arrangements.
2

RECOMMENDATION

The Panel is asked to;
2.1 Consider and discuss the content of this report.
3

THE REPORT

3.1 Local authorities can deliver their statutory and discretionary functions either
through in-house arrangements or via alternative delivery models. Broadly there
are four categories.
3.2 Shared Services. A collaboration between public sector bodies to deliver
services or facilities. Local examples include our health and social care
arrangements with the Clinical Commissioning Group, building control out of
hours arrangements with North Somerset Council.
3.3 Outsourcing. Provision is secured through a contractual arrangement with
either a private, public or third sector organisation. Areas that have been
outsourced by local authorities include back office functions (IT, HR, Finance),
customer services, property maintenance and facilities management, highways
and technical services, waste, social care, leisure and culture and regulatory
services.
Printed on recycled paper

Page 29

3.4 Outsourcing to social enterprises is a popular model in some sectors such as
leisure. Social enterprises are business-like organisations with social objectives.
Their surpluses are mostly reinvested back into the business or community.
Community asset and service transfers have in recently years become more
common in response to local authority financial constraints and a desire by
communities and town and parish councils to have more control over localised
services. This greater community involvement is often found in library and youth
services.
3.5 Joint Venture. This is a collaboration between two or more economically
independent organisations to achieve a joint aim. This can be via a contractual
arrangement or through the setting up of a new corporate entity. This is usually
a long-term arrangement, with a sharing of risk and rewards. Examples of joint
ventures include back office services, capital projects for schools and health and
local authority backed regeneration schemes.
3.6 New Provider. A new public sector organisation.
3.7 It is important to note that whatever model is adopted to discharge its’ functions,
the statutory duty will remain with a local authority. When considering delivery
options, there are two overarching aims; to support the continuation of services
(including discretionary/commercial services) and to ensure value for money.
The decision as to whether to continue to deliver in-house services or through
another route will be dependent upon a range of factors, including:
•

Understanding and clarity on what is our ‘core business’

•

Our priorities

•

Availability of revenue and capital funding

•

Our opportunity to lever in additional funding

•

In-house resources, capabilities, and skill sets

•

The maturity of external market/suppliers

•

The attractiveness of ‘our product’ and how easy we are to work with

•

Assessment of our ability/agility to respond to market conditions,
local community needs

•

Risk we are prepared to accept

•

Level of control we wish to retain, relinquish

3.8 In addition to the above factors, there are pros and cons for different models of
delivery. For example:
• Outsourcing: The rationale for outsourcing often includes the need to
lower costs, achieved through economies of scale. It can be an enabler
to greater focus on core services within the local authority. The
advantages of outsourcing include the transfer of risk to the new provider
and the procurement of sector expertise. Outcome specifications can
Printed on recycled paper

Page 30

deliver improved services. Other advantages include the ability to change
fixed costs into flexible costs and to secure access to new sources of
funding and technology. Conversely, it is important to understand how an
outsourced arrangement will interface with other services and how the
supplier will be held accountable and maintain quality of delivery. Some
of the potential disadvantages of outsourcing include the critical impact if
suppliers fail and a cost for the transfer of risk to the supplier. The ability
to make savings is transferred to the new organisation delivering the
services. This type of arrangement requires strong contract management
and staff engagement is critical from an early stage to address any
concerns.
• Joint Ventures: The advantages to this model are that the local authority
retains an element of control through profit/cost reduction arrangements.
It has a greater role in shaping the future of the Joint Venture, the staff
arrangements and in the development of key performance measures.
These arms’ length arrangements can in the long term drive down costs
and ensure genuine partnership collaboration.
• Social Enterprises: The rationale for delivering services through a social
enterprise model includes the opportunity to make savings. These
arrangements can deliver a more flexible approach to operations, staffing
structures, secure access to tax exemptions, other funding sources and
generate greater income. This can lead to a more entrepreneurial
approach and result in improved services. Conversely, the local authority
needs to be satisfied on the viability of the social enterprise, its’ access to
working capital and relevant staff expertise. In summary, the local
authority needs to be satisfied on the long-term sustainability of the social
enterprise. The contracting authority does retain a level of on-going
responsibility/guardianship role and retains a level of risk.
3.9 The Panel recently received a presentation from the council’s Head of Strategic
Procurement and Commissioning on the work of his team. The presentation
included an update on Covid related procurement activity, and a high-level
overview of total revenue and capital external spend during 2019/20. Around
62% of external spend in 19/20 related to health and social care, 22% to spend
on buildings and 6.5% on highway and transport. The council has three large
contractual arrangements (£1m + per annum). The most significant (of value) is
the Virgin Care contract for community health and social care services. This
contract was procured in partnership with the Clinical Commissioning Group.
The contact duration is for seven years and commenced in 2017/18. There is an
option to extend for 3 years. The second significant social care outsourced
arrangement is with Avon & Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust.
Outside the health and social care arrangements, the highest value contacts are
with Volkerwessels UK Ltd. Volker deliver our highway term maintenance
arrangements and street lighting and electrical programmes. The highway term
maintenance contract commenced on 1 April 2019, the street lighting and
electricals a year later.

Printed on recycled paper

Page 31

4

STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 The council has a wide range of statutory duties. This report does not impact

upon the delivery of those duties. Models of delivery (other than in-house) can
result in multiple duty holders in areas such as health and safety. This is
particularly relevant where assets form part of any alternative arrangement to inhouse provision.
5

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

5.1 There are no resource implications associated with this report.
6

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 Risk assessments are undertaken as part of any decision to move to alternative
service provision. Risk is considered at all stages of the procurement process.
7

EQUALITIES

7.1 Equality Impact Assessments are undertaken as part of procurement and
decision-making processes.
8

CLIMATE CHANGE

8.1 Social value has been enshrined for some time in our procurement processes
(local jobs, supply chains etc). The council has an emerging programme of work
to ensure that climate and nature emergency considerations are considered as
part of future procurement arrangements or as part of any change to strategy
and policy.
9

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

9.1 This report is for information and discussion.
10 CONSULTATION
10.1 Not required for this report.
Contact person

Mandy Bishop, Chief Operating Officer
Mandy_bishop@bathnes.gov.uk

Background
papers

Council Papers of 10 November 2016, Item 52 ‘Your Care, Your
Way’, Business Case (Decision to appoint Virgin Care)
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=27
2&MId=4529&Ver=4

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 32

Agenda Item 10

Bath & North East Somerset Council
MEETING:

Corporate Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel

MEETING:

11th Jan 2021

TITLE:

COUNCIL COMPANY ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

WARD:

All
AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Appendix 1 - ADL annual report and accounts 2019/20
Appendix 2 - ACL annual report and accounts 2019/20
1

THE ISSUE

1.1

To note the annual accounts of Aequus Developments Limited (ADL), Aequus
Construction Limited (ACL).

2

RECOMMENDATION

The Panel is asked to;
2.1

Note the ADL 2019/20 year end audited accounts (Appendix 1)

2.2

Note the ACL 2019/20 year end audited accounts (Appendix 2)

3

THE REPORT

3.1

The Council wholly owns the property company, ADL and its subsidiary ACL, to
develop, deliver, own and manage property as well as delivering new
development on a case by case basis. Both ADL and ACL are companies limited
by shares.

3.2

As shareholder of ADL (and ultimately ACL), the Council is asked to note the
accounts of these companies.

3.3

The draft ADL and ACL Accounts were approved by the company Board on 11th
June 2020. They have been subject to independent audit by the appointed
auditors, Monahans, and their report is included in both sets of accounts. The
Audited Accounts were then approved by the company AGM (with the Leader as
Shareholder) on 13th October 2020.

Printed on recycled paper

Page 33

ADL Statutory Accounts 2019/20
3.4

The ADL Gross Profit before taxation for the year is £259,830. When you exclude
the impact of the annual revaluation of the property portfolio and unrealised
pension costs as a result of the international accounting standards the gross profit
is £24,080. It should be noted that revaluations of the property portfolio are for
accounting purposes only and do not create distributable profits. The assets are
returned at nil cost to the Council at the end of their 50-year lease ensuring all
capital appreciation is retained by the Council.

3.5

A total of £380k in capital payments were made to B&NES during the year for 3
completed property transfers. A further 4 transfers are under way with
refurbishment work now completed. A total of £89K in revenue payments was
also made for commercial interest on loan payments.

3.6

The year also saw the completion of the Transfer Agreement in Feb 2020, the
TUPE transfer of staff from the Council to the company and appointment of two
new independent non-executive directors; Michelle Hyde and Alex Wright.

3.7

Full details of the company performance for the year are covered in the Directors
Report on pages 2 to 5 of the ADL accounts.

ACL Statutory Accounts 2019/20
3.8

The ACL Gross Profit before taxation for the year is just over £1m with total
Sales Income of £4.7m from apartment sales completed as at 31 March 2020.
Turnover reached over £5.5m including support to develop a planning
application for a site for South Gloucestershire Council.

3.9

The profits were generated from the completion of 21 sales from a total of 64
reservations in place as at 31st March 2020, in addition to a relevant margin on
all other activities.

3.10

Total revenue returns of £607K were provided to the Council predominantly from
commercial interest payments on development loans.

3.11

For the second successive year there were no new development sites
transferred from the B&NES to ACL, however in the Transfer Agreement the
Council has committed to “regularly review its land and property holdings for
Development Site opportunities to enable sufficient Development Sites to be
transferred to the Company to create a viable commercial pipeline” enabling a
Going Concern opinion to be given by the Directors. This pipeline remains key
to maintaining construction activity and viability of the company.

3.12

Full Details of the company performance for the year are covered in the Directors
Report on pages 2 and 3 of the ACL accounts.

4

STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1

ADL and ACL are governed in accordance the Council Approved LA Company
Protocol including Shareholder Agreement and Reserved Matters.

Printed on recycled paper

Page 34

4.2

These accounts for each of the Companies are provided to the Council for
consideration in accordance with the Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995.

5

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

5.1

The resource implications including the specific financial impact on the Council
for each company is set out within the body of the report.

6

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

Each of the companies are required to maintain appropriate risk management
arrangements specific to their activities and operations for which the relevant
company Board is responsible. Full details are reported to the Council (as
Shareholder) as part of the annual business planning processes and client
monitoring arrangements for each company.

6.2

Section 3.11 of the report has highlighted the requirement for new development
sites which will maintain the financial viability of the company and it’s Going
Concern audit opinion. The business pipeline risk has been reported to the
Council under the Council / Company governance arrangements and is under
review.

7

CLIMATE CHANGE

7.1

This is an information only report about the Council’s Company Accounts, it
therefore does not include any decisions that have a direct impact on Climate
Change.

8

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1

None

9

CONSULTATION

9.1

The ADL and ACL accounts have been drawn up with support from external
experts and the Monitoring and S151 Officers have had the opportunity to review
and input into this report.

9.2

The accounts have been subject to rigorous review by the individual company
Boards, independent audit, and the Annual general Meeting with the
Shareholder.

Contact person

Andy Rothery, Director of Finance – Tel: 01225 477103

Background
papers

None

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format
Printed on recycled paper

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

Page 44

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

Page 48

Page 49

Page 50

Page 51

Page 52

Page 53

Page 54

Page 55

Page 56

Page 57

Page 58

Page 59

Page 60

Page 61

Page 62

Page 63

Page 64

Page 65

Page 66

Page 67

Page 68

Page 69

Page 70

Page 71

Page 72

Page 73

Page 74

Page 75

Page 76

Page 77

Page 78

Page 79

Page 80

Page 81

Page 82

Page 83

Page 84

Page 85

Page 86

Page 87

Page 88

Page 89

Page 90

Page 91

Page 92

Page 93

Page 94

Page 95

Page 96

Page 97

Page 98

CORPORATE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL
This Forward Plan lists all the items coming to the Panel over the next few months.
Inevitably, some of the published information may change; Government guidance recognises that the plan is a best
assessment, at the time of publication, of anticipated decision making. The online Forward Plan is updated regularly and
Page 99

can be seen on the Council’s website at:
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
The Forward Plan demonstrates the Council’s commitment to openness and participation in decision making. It assists the
Panel in planning their input to policy formulation and development, and in reviewing the work of the Cabinet.

be issued 5 clear working days before the meeting.
Agenda papers can be inspected on the Council’s website and at the Guildhall (Bath), Hollies (Midsomer Norton), Civic
Centre (Keynsham) and at Bath Central, and Midsomer Norton public libraries.

Agenda Item 11

Should you wish to make representations, please contact the report author or, Democratic Services (). A formal agenda will

Ref
Decision
Date
Maker/s
11TH JANUARY 2021
11 Jan 2021

11 Jan 2021

Page 100

11 Jan 2021

Corporate
Policy
Development
and Scrutiny
Panel
Corporate
Policy
Development
and Scrutiny
Panel
Corporate
Policy
Development
and Scrutiny
Panel

Report Author
Contact

Title

Director Lead

Outsourcing our services

Mandy Bishop
Tel: 01225 39 4019

Director Environment

Council Company Accounts

Andy Rothery
Tel: 01225 477103

People Strategy

Cherry Bennett
Chief Operating Officer
Tel: 01225 47 7203

Draft Budget

Andy Rothery
Tel: 01225 477103

Director Finance Section 151 Officer

1ST FEBRUARY 2021
1 Feb 2021

Corporate
Policy
Development
and Scrutiny
Panel

29TH MARCH 2021
24TH MAY 2021
5TH JULY 2021
27TH SEPTEMBER 2021
29TH NOVEMBER 2021
1

Director Finance Section 151 Officer

Ref
Date
FUTURE ITEMS

Decision
Maker/s
Corporate
Policy
Development
and Scrutiny
Panel
Corporate
Policy
Development
and Scrutiny
Panel

Title

Report Author
Contact

Director Lead

Contacting the Council (Background Briefing:- reporting
an issue to the Council)

Tracey Long

Director Partnership &
Corporate Services

Parental Leave Policy

Page 101

The Forward Plan is administered by DEMOCRATIC SERVICES:

2

Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102

